
BOROUGH OF TAMWORTH 

 
 

 

CABINET 
 
 

18 September 2019 
 
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held on Thursday, 26th September, 2019, 6.00 
pm in Committee Room 1, Marmion House, Lichfield Street, Tamworth, B79 7BZ 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
NON CONFIDENTIAL 

 
 
1 Apologies for Absence  

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 6) 

3 Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary) 
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting. 
 
When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of 
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.  
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary 
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.   
 

4 Question Time:  

 To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to Executive 
Procedure Rule No. 13 
 

5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Pages 7 - 8) 

 (Report of the Chair of Corporate Scrutiny Committee) 
 

6 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21 Consultation (Pages 9 - 20) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Assets and Finance) 
 

7 Arts and Events Organisational Review (including Tamworth Assembly 
Rooms and Conferencing Facilities) (Pages 21 - 22) 

N0N-CONFIDENTIAL



 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Culture and Operational Services) 
 

8 Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 To consider excluding the Press and Public from the meeting by passing the 
following resolution:- 
 
“That in accordance with the provisions of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 
and Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting during the consideration of the following business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 1 and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and the public interest 
in withholding the information outweighs the public  interest in disclosing the 
information to the public” 
 
At the time this agenda is published no representations have been received that 
this part of the meeting should be open to the public. 
 

9 Grant Report Quarter 2 2019-20 (Pages 23 - 80) 

 (Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and Communities) 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
  _____________________________________ 
 
Access arrangements 

If you have any particular access requirements when attending the meeting, please contact 
Democratic Services on 01827 709267 or e-mail democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk. We can 
then endeavour to ensure that any particular requirements you may have are catered for. 
 
Filming of Meetings 

The public part of this meeting may be filmed and broadcast.  Please refer to the Council’s 

Protocol on Filming, Videoing, Photography and Audio Recording at Council meetings which can 

be found here for further information. 

The Protocol requires that no members of the public are to be deliberately filmed.  Where 

possible, an area in the meeting room will be set aside for videoing, this is normally from the front 

of the public gallery.  This aims to allow filming to be carried out whilst minimising the risk of the 

public being accidentally filmed.    

mailto:democratic-services@tamworth.gov.uk
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/councillors_docs/TBC-Filming-Protocol.docx


If a member of the public is particularly concerned about accidental filming, please consider the 

location of any cameras when selecting a seat. 

FAQs 

For further information about the Council’s Committee arrangements please see the FAQ page 

here 

 
 
 
 
To Councillors: D Cook, R Pritchard, J Chesworth, M Cook, S Doyle and J Oates. 

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/council-meetings-faqs


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1  
 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CABINET 
HELD ON 5th SEPTEMBER 2019 

 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor D Cook (Chair), Councillors R Pritchard (Vice-Chair), 

J Chesworth, M Cook, S Doyle and J Oates 

 
The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Anica 
Goodwin (Executive Director Organisation), Joanne Sands (Assistant Director 
Partnerships) and John Day (Knowledge, Performance and Insight Co-ordinater) 
 
 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
There were no apologies for absence.  
 

2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15th August 2019 were approved and signed 
as a correct record. 
 
(Moved by Councillor J Chesworth and seconded by Councillor M Cook) 
 

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no Declarations of Interest. 
 

4 QUESTION TIME:  
 
None 
 

5 MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CABINET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES  
 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee recommendation - Quarter One 2019/20 
Performance Report  
 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee endorsed the contents of Q1 Performance 
Report and made the following recommendation to Cabinet: 
 
That Cabinet address the concerns of the Scrutiny Committee regarding the 
waiting times for Universal Credit and that Cabinet agree to draft a letter to 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet 5 September 2019 

 

 

2 
 

ministers and the letter to be co-signed by Cllr D Cook and Cllr Dr S Peaple. 
 
(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor J Chesworth) 
 

6 QUARTER ONE 2019/20 PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 
The Leader of the Council to provided Cabinet with a performance update and 
financial healthcheck.  The report was considered by Corporate Scrutiny 
Committee at their meeting on 14th August 2019. 
 
RESOLVED That Cabinet; 

 
 endorsed the contents of the report, and 

 
 approved the virement of £1,000,000 from CR7003 

Regeneration General to CR7004 HRA Acquisitions 
to fund the purchase of properties on the open 
market and maximise the use of 1-4-1 right to buy 
(RTB) receipts 

 

 
(Moved by Councillor D Cook and seconded by Councillor R Pritchard) 
 

7 MODERN SLAVERY AND HUMAN TRAFFICKING STATEMENT 2018/19  
 
The Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety updates Cabinet on 
the Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement 2018/19 
 
RESOLVED That Cabinet; 

 
 Approved the Council’s Modern Slavery and Human 

Trafficking Statement 2018/19 endorsed by the Audit 
and Governance Committee 

 
(Moved by Councillor S Doyle and seconded by Councillor D Cook) 
 
 
 

  

 Leader  
 

 

Page 6



CABINET 
 

26 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

 
 

REPORT OF THE CHAIR OF CORPORATE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES 

 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
None 

 
PURPOSE 
 
To update Cabinet and to make recommendations to it following consideration of matters by 
the Scrutiny Committees. 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The following Scrutiny Committees have agreed to refer the following matters to Cabinet: 
 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

Matter referred (relevant Minute number) & brief 
summary 

Date of Scrutiny 
meeting 

Corporate Interim Update on Member Induction – Minute 
19 
 

10 July 2019 

 
 
Interim Update on Member Induction 
The Corporate Scrutiny Committee minutes (accessible here) provide further detail on this 
discussion and the recommendations that have been made, and which are set out in the 

following section of this Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Interim Update on Member Induction 
 
It is recommended that Cabinet endorse 

 the recommendations on Member Induction that have been implemented through the 
Member Induction Programme, through amendment to the Constitution in respect of 
the supply of paper to members, and the creation of the Members Zone; 

 the ICT support to members that was implemented during May 2019 for newly 
elected members; 

 the recommendation  that feedback will be sought from members on the 
implementation of the Member Induction Programme and the ongoing training 
programme and the results of this feedback will be provided to the Corporate Scrutiny 
Committee within 6 months; 

 that an update on the level of member attendance at all training sessions will be 
made available to the Corporate Scrutiny Committee. 

 
 
 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



REPORT AUTHORS 

 
Councillor Thomas Jay 
Chair of Corporate Scrutiny Committee 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Interim Update on Member Induction to Corporate Scrutiny Committee – 10 July 2019 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 

Page 8



CABINET 
 

26TH SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ASSETS AND FINANCE 

 
 

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX 
REDUCTION SCHEME 2021/22 

 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To inform Cabinet of the need to review the Council’s Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 
(LCTRS). 
 
To explain the proposed features of a new Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Cabinet approve: 

1. the need to review the Council’s Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme.  
2. the detailed cost forecasting and scheme principles explained in this report are 

considered and endorsed. 
3. that Corporate Scrutiny Committee be asked to review the proposals and options 

contained within this report with the aim to finalise a new scheme for Public 
consultation in 2020. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
This report updates Members on the proposals to review the Local Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme (LCTRS) for implementation in 2021/22, starting on 1 April 2021. 
 
The Council’s current LCTRS was implemented in 2013, in partnership with all other 
Staffordshire councils, when the national Council Tax Benefit scheme was abolished.   
In common with all other districts and boroughs at that time, Staffordshire authorities worked 
jointly to produce a framework scheme, which is based on the same set of principles but 
contained some variances for each local authority depending on their demographics and 
local priorities, whilst at the same time accommodating a 10% reduction in government 
funding, and protecting the more vulnerable groups. 
 
In the main our scheme has remained relatively unchanged since 2013 only incorporating 
small changes to continue to align the scheme each year with any Housing Benefit changes. 
In light of the proposals contained within this report, we are not proposing any changes to the 
scheme for 2020/21 other than the usual alignment with Housing benefit which is a minor 
change and does not require consultation. 
 
The scheme is means tested and all claimants are required to complete an application form 
and provide considerable evidence and information within a specific timescale in order for an 
assessment to be completed enabling a reduction in the amount of council tax payable. 

 
However, the current scheme does not work well for Universal Credit (UC) claimants, who no 
longer claim other benefits from the Council. 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



Central government funding continues to reduce as Housing Benefit caseloads reduce as a 
result of Universal Credit. The rules for LCTR pensioners continue to be prescribed nationally 
and therefore we can only consider changes to the scheme for working age claimants. 
 
Our current scheme is ‘penny specific’.  We make an award based on exact income and 
capital of the customer.  Any change must be reported and will require a re-assessment, 
which in turn generates a revised Council Tax bill. This is cumbersome and frustrating for 
Benefit Staff, Council Tax Staff and customers alike, particularly when changes are small. 
Furthermore, the repeated re-issue of bills, delays the recovery of unpaid council tax, which 
obviously contributes to non-payment issues.   
 
UC payments in particular would be problematic if not addressed.  For many claimants, UC 
payments can change on monthly basis. This could mean that an individual might receive 
twelve council tax bills and revised benefit letters during the year with payment schedules 
being re-profiled each time. This makes it very difficult for claimants to manage their money 
or understand how changes to their income might affect them, often leading to arrears and 
debt. This will certainly become more of an issue as the volume of UC claimants increase 
when managed migration of UC commences, with additional administration as a 
consequence of the multiple changes, potentially impacting on staff resources required to 
deal with these changes. 
 
The Council Tax arrears amongst LCTR recipients are proportionately much higher than 
arrears amongst those not reliant on benefit, and this is no surprise. Whereas in 2018-19 we 
collected 98.4% of our overall Council Tax within the financial year, the collection rate 
amongst LCTR recipients was 84%. The current scheme is evidently creating charges which 
are difficult for the taxpayer to pay and for the Council to recover when not paid. This is 
clearly inefficient and ineffective and needs to be addressed, without losing fairness and 
equality from the scheme. 
 
Better use of technology can also be considered in order to simplify the process of claiming, 
assessing and notifying LCTR, to the benefit of both the council and its customers. 
 
The proposed scheme will be a “Banded Discount Scheme” which would remove much of the 
complexity associated with the current scheme, whilst at the same time maintaining fairness 
and equality in the way in which awards are distributed amongst Council Tax payers.   
 
According to their household and financial circumstances, claimants will be placed into bands 
and an appropriate percentage reduction made from their bill. 
 
An example of a banded scheme can be seen below  

(This is for illustration purposes only): 
 

CTR Level Passported Single Person 
Income Band  

£ 

Couples Income 
Band £ 

Family with 1 
child  

£ 

Family with 2 or 
more children £ 

 
Band 1 – 80% 
 

 
Relevant 
Benefit 

 
0.00 – 79.99 

 

 
0.00 – 119.99 

 
0.00 – 179.99 

 
0.00 – 239.99 

 
Band 2 – 60% 
 

 
N/A 

 
80.00 – 129.99 

 
120.00 – 169.99 

 

 
180.00 – 229.99 

 
240.00 – 299.99 

 
Band 3 – 40% 
 

 
N/A 

 
130.00 – 179.99 

 
170.00 – 219.99 

 
230.00 – 279.99 

 
300.00 – 349.99 

 
Band 4 – 20% 
 

 
N/A 

 
180.00 – 259.99 

 
220.00 – 299.99 

 
280.00 – 379.99 

 
350.00 – 449.99 

 
No Discount 
 

 
N/A 

 
>260.00 

 
>300.00 

 
>380.00 

 
>450.00 

Page 10



 
Changing the LCTRS to a Banded Discount Scheme will make it much easier for people to 
understand and for our staff to administer. Claimants will easily be able to establish if they 
will qualify and the amounts involved. 
 
The new income band system would enable people to increase their working hours or get a 
better paid job knowing in advance how much support we will give them to pay their council 
tax. It is therefore, proposed that the income ranges will be wide ranging in order to avoid 
having to make constant changes in the level of discount awarded. They will also get fewer 
council tax bills even if their Universal Credit changes provided their income remains within a 
particular band. 
 
The current CTR scheme policy is significant in size, unduly complex and primarily based on 
a means-tested benefits scheme.  The intention is to make the new scheme policy much 
simpler, reducing the level of complexity and making it more transparent and understandable 
for applicants and tax payers. 
 
It is expected that some of the current onerous evidence requirements can be also reduced, 
with our officers’ time being more targeted to compliance checks using data access and data 
matching facilities available to us. 
 
Many other councils across the country are adopting the same approach. 
 

 2013/14 – Only 1 Council in England had a banded scheme 

 2018/19 – 10 Councils introduced banded or part banded schemes 

 2019/20 – 25 Councils have introduced banded or part banded schemes 

 2020/21 – Over 100 authorities are looking to change and simplify their schemes. 
 
 

OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
The new scheme will be much simpler and will bring in a system of income bands to assess 
an entitlement to a set % Council Tax Reduction.  The proposed Banded Scheme will be 
easier to administer.  It will be easy for customers to calculate their own entitlement and 
understand the effect of changes in their income and how much council tax they need to pay.  
Their entitlement will only produce a revised Council Tax Demand Notice if their income 
moves into up/down into another band level. 
 
Options considered for the proposed banding scheme are: 
 

 The scheme will be cost neutral.  We anticipate the total spend to be as it is now. 

 Significant administrative savings resulting from the streamlined process and use of 
technology. 

 Improved customer experience, through simplicity of process. 

 If possible, we want to create common schemes across all Staffordshire Districts. 

 Banded Discounts, probably increasing in 25% or 20% increments up to 100%. 

 For Universal Credit claimants – Housing costs to be 100% disregarded.  This 
amount included in their monthly payment is intended for help towards their rental 
costs. This is also disregarded in the current scheme. 

 Continue to disregard the following incomes – Disability Living Allowance (Care & 
Mobility components), Personal Independence Payments (Daily Living & Mobility – 
both Standard & Enhanced rate components) and Child Benefit, Maintenance 
Received & War Pensions (the current scheme allows for all of these disregards). 

 Where an applicant is disabled, they have a disabled child or receive the Support 
Component of the Employment and Support Allowance, the amount they receive as a 
premium under the existing scheme will be replaced by an equivalent income 
disregard. This will help continue to protect the most vulnerable. 

Page 11



 Where applicants receive Carers Allowance for looking after a person who is ill or 
disabled, the Carers Allowance payment they receive should be disregarded. 

 Earnings disregards – to encourage work existing earnings disregards replaced by a 
standard £25 per week across all applicant types.  Under the current scheme the 
earnings disregards are £5 (single persons), £10 (couples) and £25 (Lone Parents & 
disabled) 

 No Non-dependant deductions.  This is a significant change and means that the 
administration of the scheme will be more straightforward whilst also protecting low 
income families where adult sons and daughters, for example, remain at home. The 
current scheme applies no deduction where a non-dependant claims a primary 
benefit, £5 if a non-dependant works less than 16 hours per week and £10 if working 
16 hours or more weekly. 

 Simplifying the capital rules and reducing the capital limit from the current £16,000 to 
£6,000.  Any capital below this this level will not have any effect on the applicant’s 
entitlement.  This removes the need for applying a tariff income on capital above 
£6000. 

 The scheme will have a minimum award of £1.00 per week. 

 Claimants will only need to report changes of income which are sufficient to take 
them into the next income band. 

 Self-employed claimants will be assessed according to their HMRC self-assessed 
earnings, subject to a minimum of the National Minimum wages level. 

 
Various modelling has been carried out with varying degrees of savings/expenditure 
dependant on the options applied, income bands and percentages used – attached at 
Appendix 1. 
 
LCTRS Modelling option 1 shows a maximum award of 100% for those customers in receipt 
of a Passported benefit (Jobseekers Allowance (IB), Employment Support Allowance (IR) or 
Income Support); however the cost of this scheme shows a significant overspend of 
approximately £531,000.  While the intention of the scheme is to support those on the lowest 
income, protecting the disabled and trying to minimise the loss of customer’s current 
entitlement, this is unlikely to be achieved without further spending.  Under this scheme only 
76 would lose an average of £6 per week with 2464 either benefiting financially or seeing no 
change to their current entitlement. 
 
The proposed scheme, option 2 shows a change to both income bands and percentages with 
the maximum award of 80%.  There would be a significant financial impact for a small 
number of customers and it is estimated that 1,778 customers will benefit financially, 762 will 
be worse off by £4 per week on average while achieving a cost neutral spend. 
 
LCTRS Modelling option 3 shows the maximum award reduced to 90% with a saving of 
around £27,000.  However in order to achieve this, the income bands have been lowered 
resulting in 1436 either benefiting financially or seeing no change to their current entitlement, 
while 1104 would lose an average of £5 per week. 
 
It should be noted that these figures are estimates and can change due to continuous 
monitoring of the modelling of the scheme as the claim base changes.   
 
In order to finalise the proposed scheme for Public Consultation in 2020, it is recommended 
that Corporate Scrutiny Committee be asked to review the proposals and options contained 
within this report and provide appropriate feedback to Cabinet to influence the design of the 
scheme. This will give Members the opportunity to further understand the complexities 
involved in amending the scheme and the potential impact (positive and negative) on the 
current scheme recipients.  
 
Exceptional Hardship Policy 
 
The current LCTR scheme also contains a provision for applicants to make an application for 
additional financial support where they experience exceptional hardship.  It is therefore 

Page 12



proposed that the new scheme will still contain the same provisions and where any person, 
or group of persons, is likely to experience hardship, this will be addressed as part of the 
overall scheme design. 
 
The Exceptional Hardship Policy will continue to be an integral part of the scheme for the 
foreseeable future and will allow for additional support to be given where an individual suffers 
exceptional hardship. 
 
Consultation Process 
 
Full Council approval will be needed for an amended scheme and we are obliged to conduct 
a comprehensive consultation process prior to this.  This will include involvement of the 
Corporate Scrutiny Committee in the design of the scheme as well as consultation with 
preceptors, voluntary organisations and the public.  The next steps in this process are as 
follows; 
 

 Review – whilst the principles of an efficient scheme are apparent, the most difficult 
part of the task is to establish the correct income bands to be applied within the 
scheme. Revised costings can be carried out throughout the process to finalise the 
scheme. 
 

 Consultation - An extensive formal consultation will need take place around August 
2020, typically for a period of around 8 to 12 weeks and include the major preceptors, 
partners, community groups, other stakeholders and any other interested parties. 
Sufficient information on the reasons for the proposals must be provided to permit the 
consultees to carry out intelligent consideration of the issues and respond. The 
Staffordshire billing authorities will undertake this exercise together, sharing the cost 
of any necessary external expertise.   
 

 Reporting and Approval - The results of the consultation must be properly taken into 
account in finalising any decision. Full Council approval is needed for the new 
schemes.   

 
 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The estimated annual cost of the current LCTR scheme is £4.1m of which £2m relates to 
working age claimants. The financial modelling for the new scheme is ongoing but the 
intention is to maintain the cost at current levels.  There will be no significant financial impact 
to the Council and major Precepting Authorities. 
 
This report seeks only to explain the features of the process and so has no significant 
financial implications at this stage. 

It is anticipated that the scheme that we will consult upon will be broadly budgetary neutral 
and will be reported and explained to members through the consultation process. 

 

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
The new scheme framework will inevitably change the amount of discount to some 
customers.  The modelling suggests that whilst a number will have an enhanced award, 
where any award is reduced applicants will be able to apply for an exceptional hardship 
payment. 
 
We have a legal duty to consult on the changes to our scheme. Schedule 1A of the Local 
Government Finance act 1992, which was inserted by Local Government Finance act 1992 
states that: 
 

Page 13



Before making a scheme, the authority must (in the following order): 
 

a) consult any major precepting authority which has power to issue a precept to it; 
b) publish a draft scheme in such manner as it thinks fit; and 
c) consult such other persons as it considers are likely to have an interest in the 

operation of the scheme. 
 
A summary of the perceived risks follows: 
 

Perceived Risk Seriousness Likelihood Preventative 
Action 

Council not able to 
maximise collection 
due to increased 
demand notices 

High Medium To review the 
scheme so that 
small changes in 
income are not 
reflecting in multiple 
changes to a CTR 
award with multiple 
demand notices. 

Council not able to 
recover increase in 
arrears 

Medium Medium To utilise resource 
effectively and 
administer hardship 
schemes 
appropriately. 
 

Negative public 
reaction to proposals 

Medium Medium Response from 
consultation will be 
taken into 
consideration when 
the final scheme is 
recommended. 

Potential legal 
challenge to 2021/22 
CTR scheme  

Medium Low Ensure full 
consultation has 
taken place with 
genuine options and 
that a proper 
equality impact 
assessment has 
been undertaken. 

 
 
EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

A full Equality Impact Assessment, together with the results of the consultation will be 
presented to Cabinet once the consultation is closed.  At this stage, Cabinet is being asked 
to agree draft scheme options that can be put out to consultation. 
 
Where an individual may suffer exceptional hardship, the scheme will include provisions to 
allow additional support to be given. 
 
 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
Funding for the replacement of the previous Council Tax Benefit Scheme was changed from 
an unrestricted reimbursement of Council Tax Benefit Subsidy to a restricted, pre-allocated 
grant figure – which has subsequently been reduced year on year as part of the austerity 
measures. The Council must be aware that there must continue to be a contingency if, for 
instance, a major local employer goes into administration. 
 

Page 14



 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
The Welfare Reform Act abolished Council Tax Benefit from 01 April 2013.  It was replaced 
by a new Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme for working age customers.  A national 
scheme of regulations was introduced for pensioners, which mirrors the obsolete Council Tax 
Benefit Scheme. 
 
On 11 December 2018 Full Council considered and approved the Council’s Local Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme 2019/20.  Since the introduction of the original scheme in April 2013, 
there have been many changes in welfare reform that have required the Council to review 
the existing scheme and impact that it will have on residents and the authority in the future. 
The potential to mitigate the effect of the changes by moving to a banded LCTRS scheme 
was raised in the LCTRS report to Council in December 2018. 
 
It has been recognised locally (& by most Billing Authorities in the country), that the existing 
Local Council Tax Reduction Schemes  need to significantly change to meet the changing 
world of local authority benefits and our claimants, who are of working age.  No changes are 
permissible to the reductions offered to pensioners. 
 
As such, discussions have taken place amongst the authorities in Staffordshire with a strong 
consensus of opinion being reached as to what a “Banded Discount Scheme” might look like.  
Many other authorities have already implemented such schemes with many more looking to 
do so from April 2020.   
 
As with the current countywide LCTRS scheme, authorities are keen to work together on 
these changes.  Most districts/boroughs have indicated that they would like to adopt banded 
schemes which are as similar is practicably possible, so as to avoid confusion or “post code 
lotteries” across the county. 
 
The introduction of Universal Credit on 30 November 2017 in the district has started and will 
continue to have a significant impact on the Council’s CTR scheme.  This trend is being 
recognised nationally as more schemes are adapted to meet the changing needs of 
residents. 
 
From 30 November 2017 working age claimants who apply for ‘legacy benefits’ (Income 
Support, Jobseekers Allowance, Employment Support Allowance, Working & Child Tax 
Credits and Housing Benefit) in Tamworth Jobcentre area will have to claim Universal Credit 
instead. 
 
Under Universal Credit claimants receive monthly payments encompassing their qualifying 
benefits.  This does not include Council Tax Reduction which remains an administrative 
function of the Local Authority. 
 
Any proposed significant changes to the scheme will require a full public consultation and 
agreement at full Council by March 2021. 
 
Any proposed change would only relate to working age claimants as the pensionable age 
regulations are maintained by Central Government and out of scope for review. 
 
In addition to this, trends show that there is low take up of customers in receipt of Universal 
Credit applying for Council Tax Reduction.  Large numbers of change in circumstances are 
received by Councils via the DWP’s data hub resulting in monthly adjustments in CTR 
creating difficulties in collection of council tax with multiple demand notices being issued.  
National trends have demonstrated that on average Universal Credit customers receive at 
least 8 change notifications in a year, in particular those that work and also claim Universal 
Credit.  Under the existing scheme each change to income would produce a new demand 
notice for the customer; amending their instalments on a regular basis and making it difficult 
to collect via Direct Debit due to rules around the administration. 

Page 15



 
Regular changing of instalments can make it difficult for a customer to use Direct Debit as a 
payment method, due to the lead in times that the Council needs to advise the customer of a 
change before taking the payment.  Multiple demand notices and CTR notifications can also 
be confusing for the residents to keep up with. 
  
 

REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Jane Smith 
 

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Scheme Modelling options 

 

Page 16



Appendix 1 
Tamworth Borough Council’s Banding Scheme Option 1 
 
Current Scheme Expenditure £4,082,941 
 
Proposed Cost £4,613,937 (includes current spend – Pensioner scheme @ £2,168,224)  
 
Overspend £530,996 
 
Income bands 
 

 
Weekly income levels 
 

Band Discount Single Person Couple with no 
children or young 
person 

Couple or lone 
parent with one 
child/young 
person 

Couple or lone 
parent with two or 
more 
children/young 
persons 

 
1 

 
100% 

 
Passported Benefit 

£0 - £79.99 £0 - £119.99 £0 - £179.99 £0 - £239.99 

2 75% £80 – £129.99 £120 - £169.99 £180 - £229.99 £240 – £299.99 

3 50% £130 - £179.99 £170 - £219.99 £230 – £279.99 £300 - £349.99 

4 25% £180 - £259.99  £220 - £299.99 £280 - £379.99 £350 - £449.99 

5 0% £260 + £300 +  £380 +  £450 + 

 
Scheme basics 
 

 The maximum discount that can be paid is 100%.  Anyone with savings above £16,000 will not qualify. 

 Applicants will receive a discount of 100%, 75%, 50%, 25% or no discount, depending on the level of their 
income and the income band they fall into. 

 People on a Passported benefit – ie Income Support, Jobseekers Allowance (IB) or Employment Support 
Allowance (IR) will automatically be placed into Band 1 (ie 100% discount). 

 Net weekly income is used. 

 £25 per week disregard from net earnings. 

 DLA, PIP, War Pensions, Child Benefit, Child Maintenance, ESA Support Component and Carers Allowance are 
disregarded in full. 

 Extra disregards apply if disabled (ie SDP) and/or a child receives DLA/PIP. 

 Minimum award of £1.00 per week. 
 
 
3 Do not qualify – due to income. 
 
76 lose average £351 pa. (1 loses £1200 (due to income of £830 per week). 
1811 gain 
653 no change to current entitlement 
 
Of the claims that lose entitlement: 
76 Non-passported – ave loss £351 pa. 
(ie all Passported claims under this scheme will gain from 75% to 100%) 
 
 

 
 
 
 Page 17



Tamworth Borough Council’s Banding Scheme Option 2 
 
Cost £4,108,821 Overspend £25,880 
 
Income bands 
 

 
Weekly income levels 
 

Band Discount Single Person Couple with no 
children or young 
person 

Couple or lone 
parent with one 
child/young 
person 

Couple or lone 
parent with two or 
more 
children/young 
persons 

 
1 
 

 
80% 
 

Passported Benefit 
 

£0 - £79.99 £0 - £119.99 £0 - £179.99 £0 - £239.99 

2 60% £80 – £129.99 £120 - £169.99 £180 - £229.99 £240 – £299.99 

3 40% £130 - £179.99 £170 - £219.99 £230 – £279.99 £300 - £349.99 

4 20% £180 - £259.99  £220 - £299.99 £280 - £379.99 £350 - £449.99 

5 0% £260 + £300 +  £380 +  £450 + 

 
Scheme basics 
 

 The maximum discount that can be paid is 80%.  Therefore everyone will have to contribute a minimum of 
20% council tax. 

 Anyone with savings above £6,000 will not qualify. 

 Applicants will receive a discount of 80%, 60%, 40%, 20% or no discount, depending on the level of their 
income and the income band they fall into. 

 People on a Passported benefit – ie Income Support, Jobseekers Allowance (IB) or Employment Support 
Allowance (IR) will automatically be placed into Band 1 (ie 80% discount). 

 Net weekly income is used. 

 £25 per week disregard from net earnings. 

 DLA, PIP, War Pensions, Child Benefit, Child Maintenance, ESA Support Component and Carers Allowance are 
disregarded in full. 

 Extra disregards apply if disabled (ie SDP) and/or a child receives DLA/PIP. 
 
13 do not qualify due to capital limit reduction from £16,000 to £6,000.  
 
Recalculated changing the capital limit to £16K  = Overspend £35,995 (additional £10,075). 
 
3 do not qualify – due to income. 
 
762 lose average £213 pa. (5 lose £1000 - £1300 (due to income – ranges from £800-£950 per week). 
1778 gain 
 
Of the claims that lose entitlement: 
474 Passported – ave loss £188 pa (these are  
288 Non-passported – ave loss £254 pa. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 18



Tamworth Borough Council’s Banding Scheme Option 3 
 
Cost £4,055,937 Saving £27,003 
 
Income bands 
 

 
Weekly income levels 
 

Band Discount Single Person Couple with no 
children or young 
person 

Couple or lone 
parent with one 
child/young 
person 

Couple or lone 
parent with two or 
more 
children/young 
persons 

 
1 
 

 
90% 
 

Passported Benefit 
 

£0 - £73.34 £0 - £115.13 £0 - £199.48 £0 - £266.38 

2 75% £73.35 – £133.34 £115.14 - £175.13 £199.49 - £259.48 £266.39 – £326.38 

3 50% £133.35 - £163.34 £175.14 - £205.13 £259.49 – £289.48 £326.38 - £356.38 

4 25% £163.35 - £193.34 £205.14 - £235.13 £289.49 - £319.48 £356.39 - £386.38 

5 0% £193.35 + £235.14 +  £319.49 +  £386.39 + 

 
Scheme basics 
 

 The maximum discount that can be paid is 90%.  Therefore everyone will have to contribute a minimum of 
10% council tax. 

 Anyone with savings above £6,000 will not qualify. 

 Applicants will receive a discount of 90%, 75%, 50%, 25% or no discount, depending on the level of their 
income and the income band they fall into. 

 People on a Passported benefit – ie Income Support, Jobseekers Allowance (IB) or Employment Support 
Allowance (IR) will automatically be placed into Band 1 (ie 90% discount). 

 Net weekly income is used. 

 £25 per week disregard from net earnings. 

 DLA, PIP, War Pensions, Child Benefit, Child Maintenance and Carers Allowance are disregarded in full. 

 Extra disregards apply of £64.19 if a child receives DLA/PIP and £65.85 if disabled (ie SDP). 
 
172 DNQ – due to income (14 DNQ due to capital limit reduction) = 186. 
 
1104  lose average £253 pa. (14 claims lose £1000 - £1700 (due to income – ranges from £475-£950 per week). 
1257  gain 
179  no change 
 
Of the claims that lose entitlement: 
474 Passported – ave loss £99 pa 
630 Non-passported – ave loss £369 pa. 
 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET 
 

THURSDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 
 
 

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR CULTURE AND OPERATIONAL 
SERVICES 

 
 

ARTS AND EVENTS ORGANISATIONAL REVIEW (INCLUDING TAMWORTH 
ASSEMBLY ROOMS AND CONFERENCING FACILITIES) 

 
 
 
EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
None. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To request the release of contingency to fund the new Arts and Events staffing 
structure. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Members approve the request to release £61,910 from the 
contingency budget to enable the implementation of the new Arts and Events 
structure. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
On 17th September 2019 the Appointments and Staffing Committee approved the 
new structure of the Arts and Event Team.  The structure will provide the necessary 
key positions to continue to deliver the wide range of corporate indoor and outdoor 
events but also now resources have been approved that will serve and operate the 
new facilities of the Tamworth Assembly Rooms (TAR) including conference facilities, 
the increased food and beverage offer as well as the new Claymore Lounge. 
 
Budgets previously set for the TAR did not detail the full staffing requirements of the 
new operational service and as such, a shortfall of £61,913 is required to be released 
from contingency to enable the immediate recruitment of key positions.  
 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION   
 
On 20th December 2018, 21st March 2019 and 2nd July 2019 updates on the progress 
of the TAR have been provided to Cabinet.  Details of the staffing structures had not 
been previously provided as the work was still continuing on the final details of the 
full commercial and catering offer.  In addition, current revenue budgets included in 
the MTFS for the TAR did not reflect the costings of a fully resourced facility. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 
Working alongside external consultants the ‘offer’ has now been clearly defined and 
as such, a confidential detailed report was presented to Appointments and Staffing 
Committee on 17th September 2019.   
 
The new structure contains new positons that will focus on delivery of the catering 
offer (i.e. Chef manager and Senior Bar Supervisor) as well as providing conference 
and meeting facilities with client facing staff (i.e. Meetings and Events Sales Co-
ordinator). 
 
Projections for the catering profit and loss allow the new catering offer to grow and 
develop and it is anticipated that the developing offer will be self-financing for many 
areas.  However, in the short-term the structure will require pump priming to allow the 
venue to operate to its full capacity. 
 
The shortfall of £61,910 is requested to pump prime the approved structure from the 
contingency budget.  Further work will be undertaken during the 2020/21 budget 
process to identify the financial implications of the revised business plan and these 
will be included as proposed Policy Changes.  
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND  
 
If Cabinet do not approve the recommendation the catering offer as well as the 
operations of the TAR will be significantly undermined.  Further, the TAR will not be 
resourced sufficiently to be able to achieve the financial targets already set. 
   

 

REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Ani Goodwin, Executive Director Organisation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



CABINET  
26th September 2019 

 
Report of the Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and Communities  

  
Tamworth Borough Council Grant Schemes 

 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
The Appendices to this Report are not for publication because the appendices 
could involve the disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraphs 1 
and 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) 
 
PURPOSE 
To agree grant applications to the Council’s Small Grants Scheme. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

 That Cabinet consider the applications and approve officer 
recommendations for small grants, art grants, sport grants and 
business grants 

 That Cabinet Delegate authority to the Executive Director of 
Communities in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Communities to manage the Festive Grant Applications and agree 
Festive Grant awards including any variations during the term of the 
grants 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The small grant, sports grants, arts grants and business grant applications 
were previously submitted to Cabinet Sub-grants committee four times per 
year for consideration.  
 
It has been agreed that Cabinet will now consider applications to all of the 
schemes directly via one report which therefore negates the need for Cabinet 
Sub-grants Committee.  
 
Prior to the Cabinet meeting a summary overview of all eligible grant 
applications received and evaluations has been circulated by the responsible 
officers, via email, to the Portfolio Holder for Communities, Portfolio Holder for 
Cultural and Operational Services and the Portfolio Holder for Heritage and 
Growth for information to consider applications made, raise any questions 
with responsible Officers prior to Cabinet to inform decisions at the Cabinet 
Meeting for awards or refusal based on grant criteria.    
 
Small grant applications  
 
To reflect the application guidelines outlined in the background information 
below, applications are outlined under three categories: 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



 

 Applications for revenue/running costs 

 Applications for equipment/projects  

 Combined Applications: Running Costs/Projects and Equipment 
 
The following small grant applications have been received this quarter: 
 

Applications for Revenue/Running Costs                       Applied for  Recommended 

No Applications received this quarter   

   

   

Sub-total for this section   

 
 

Applications for Equipment/Projects Applied for  Recommended 

Tamworth Volunteer Litter Pickers  £506.50 £506.50 

Heart of Tamworth Community Project  £500.00 £500.00 

1st Glascote (St George) Scout Group  £300.00 £300.00 

   

Sub-total for this section    £1,306.50 £1,306.50 

 
 

Combined Applications: Running 
Costs/Projects and Equipment 

Applied for Recommended 

Milk Fairies CIC £500 £500 

Sub-total for this section     £500 £500 

 

Overall Total Running Costs            £00.00 

Overall Total Equipment/Projects £1,306.50 

Overall Total Combined Applications £500.00 

TOTAL VALUE OF APPLICATIONS Q2 2019/20           
£1,806.50 

  
An overview of each small grant application and evaluation is attached as  
Appendices.  
         
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
The grant applications received can be met from the 2019/20 Grants to 
Voluntary Organisations budget GS1002 31551 
 

Revenue Budget 2019/20   £12,200.00 

Grants awarded in Quarter 1 £4,000.00 

Balance Available  £8,200.00 

Applications received per this report £1,806.50 

Budget remaining if all Q2 officer recommendations 
accepted 

£6,393.50 

 
 

Page 24



Art grant applications  
 
The Arts Grant Fund is available to support individuals or small-scale arts 
projects. An overview of each art grant application and evaluation is attached 
as Appendices. The following art grant applications have been received this 
quarter: 
 
 

Applications                        Applied for  Recommended 

Tamworth Literary Festival £500 £500 

Tamworth Volunteer Litter Pickers £500 £500 

   

Sub-total for this section £1,000 £1,000 

 
Resource Implications  
 
The funds allocated to the Arts Grants applicants detailed in the report can be 
met from the 2019/20 Arts Grant budget. GX0609 34537 
 

Revenue Budget 2019/20   £7,460.00 

Grants awarded in Quarter 1 £00.00 

Balance Available  £7,460.00 

Applications received per this report £1,000.00 

Budget remaining if all Q2 officer recommendations 
accepted 

£6,460.00 

 
 
Sports grant applications  
 
To reflect the application guidelines outlined in the background information 
below, applications are outlined under three categories: 
 

 Applications for talented individual 

 Applications for club  

 Applications for coaching 
 
The following sport grant applications have been received this quarter: 
 

Applications for talented individual                       Applied for  Recommended 

KH £1,000 £300 

   

   

Sub-total for this section  £300 

 

Applications for club                       Applied for  Recommended 

Bolehall Swifts £5,000 £3,000 

   

   

Sub-total for this section  £3,000 

Page 25



 

Applications for coaching                        Applied for  Recommended 

JS £147.50 £147.50 

Tamworth Cycling Club £1,850 £950 

   

Sub-total for this section  £1,097.50 

 
Resource Implications  
 
The grant applications received can be met from the 2019/20 Sports Grants 
budget GY0801 34537. 
 

Revenue Budget 2019/20   £16,390.00 

Grants awarded in Quarter 1 £5,006.80 

Balance Available  £11,383.20 

Applications received per this report £4,397.50 

Budget remaining if all Q2 officer recommendations 
accepted 

£6,985.70 

 
Business Grants  
 
The business grant fund is available to support small-scale grants to local 
businesses. £20,000.00 is available for allocation during 2019/20, of which up 
to £5,000.00 can be allocated per quarter, unless there is an underspend from 
the previous quarters, and then this amount will be rolled over to the next 
funding round. An overview of each business grant application and evaluation 
is attached as Appendices.  
 
The following business grant applications have been received this quarter: 
 

Applications for business grants                       Applied for  Recommended 

McAusland Music £1,500.00 £1,000.00 

Puppy Love Dog Grooming £1,500.00 £950.00 

Goldcrest Soft Furnishings £1,500.00 £900.00 

Sharon Rose Author and Playwright £1,446.00 £700.00 

Showroom Standard Cleaning £1,442.00 £590.00 

KB Services £1,500.00 £500.00 

Le Secret £1,500.00 £500.00 

Renew Chiropractic £1,500.00 £0.00 

   

Sub-total for this section £11,888.00 £5,140.00 

 
Resource Implications  
 
The grant applications received can be met from the 2019/20 Business Grant 
budget GS0402-34537. 
 
 

Page 26



Revenue Budget 2019/20   £20,000.00 

Grants awarded in Quarter 1     £4,860.00 

Balance Available  £15,140.00 

Applications received per this report £11,888.00 

Applications recommended per this report £5,140.00 

Budget remaining if all Q2 officer recommendations 
accepted 

£10,000.00 

 
Festive Grants 
 
In 2017 Cabinet approved the allocation of the Mayoral Hamper scheme  
budget of £3000 to a new scheme - the Festive Grant Scheme. The £3000 
grant is divided between the ten Tamworth wards with each ward 
Councillor receiving an allocation of £100 (£300 per Ward) to be utilised 
for the residents of the Ward who attend a local group, with the aim of 
combating social isolation at Christmas.  Application must be submitted 
via a Ward Councillor who can recommend and support worthy groups.  
 

Full details and application form is available on the Council website: 
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/festive-grants 
 
Over the past two years, the Grants Sub-Committee have made 
decisions on these award applications.  However, as the application 
deadline for this year’s Festive Grants is 1st November 2019 and grants 
will need to be paid to successful organisations promptly in time for 
their festive delivery plans, the Cabinet meeting on 28th November 2019 
may not allow sufficient time for awards to be made. 
 
In order to address this, all Ward Councillors are asked to submit 
applications in a timely manner for grants to groups within their Wards 
for collation and report by Partnership staff and Cabinet are asked to 
delegate authority for decisions on this year’s Festive Grant Awards to 
be given to the Executive Director of Communities in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for Communities to recommend award in time for 
the festive season.  All grants awarded will be subject to full publicity 
and published on the Council website under the Local Government 
Transparancy code. 
 
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND 
 
There are no staffing, community/performance planning, sustainable 
development, community safety, equal opportunities or human rights 
implications arising from this report.   
 
There are no associated risks arising directly from the report. 
 
The intention is to review the grants process in terms of governance and 
process in time for the 2020/21 financial year.  
 
 

Page 27

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/festive-grants


SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
All grants are monitored and outcomes reported via the Council’s 
performance management framework.  
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Tamworth Borough Council offer a wide range of grants and information is 
available online via-https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/grants 
 
REPORT AUTHOR 
 
Stephanie Ivey, Partnerships Vulnerability Officer  
Stephanie-ivey@tamworth.gov.uk 
01827 709381 
 
Jo Sands, Assistant Director Partnerships 
Joanne-sands@tamworth.gov.uk 
01827 709585 
 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Review of Voluntary & Community Sector Funding. 4.7.05 
Review of Grants to Voluntary Organisations (Small Grants Scheme) 2005 - 

06. Cabinet Grants Sub Committee 27.6.06 
 
Business Start Up Grant – Cabinet Report 7th April 2017 
 
Cabinet Report of the Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer to 

Cabinet on 19th October 2017 
 
APPENDICES 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/grants
mailto:Stephanie-ivey@tamworth.gov.uk
mailto:Joanne-sands@tamworth.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 29

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 43

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 47

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 53

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules
	6 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2020/21 Consultation
	Appendix 1 Local Council Tax Reduction Scheme Modelling 2021/22

	7 Arts and Events Organisational Review (including Tamworth Assembly Rooms and Conferencing Facilities)
	9 Grant Report Quarter 2 2019-20
	Appendix 1.Q2 Voluntary & Community Grants.Summary
	Appendix 2 Evaluation.Tamworth Volunteer Litter Pickers
	Appendix 3 Evaluation.Heart of Tamworth
	Appendix 4 Evaluation.1st Glascote Scouts
	Appendix 5 Evaluation.Milk Fairies
	Appendix 6 Evaluation.Tamworth Literary Festival
	Appendix 7 Arts Evaluation.Tamworth Volunteer Litter Pickers
	Appendix 8 Q2 Arts Grant Applications.Summary
	Appendix 9 Q2 Sports Grant Applications.Summary
	Appendix 10 Sport Evaluation.KH
	Appendix 11 Sport Evaluation.Bolehall Swifts
	Appendix 12 Sport Evaluation.JS
	Appendix 13 Sport Evaluation.Tamworth Cycling Club
	Appendix 14 Q2 Business Grant Applications.Summary
	Appendix 15 Business Evaluation.McAusland Music
	Appendix 16 Business Evaluation.Puppy Love Dog Grooming
	Appendix 17 Business Evaluation.Goldcrest Soft Furnishings
	Appendix 18 Business Evaluation.Sharon Rose Author and Playwright
	Appendix 19 Business Evaluation.Showroom Standard Cleaning
	Appendix 20 Business Evaluation.KB Services
	Appendix 21 Business Evaluation.Le Secret
	Appendix 22 Business Evaluation.Renew Chiropractic


